
1 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

ADVANCED PUBLICATION OF 
REPORTS 

 
 

This publication gives five clear working days’ notice of the decisions listed below. 
 

These decisions are due to be signed by individual Cabinet Members 
and operational key decision makers. 

 
Once signed all decisions will be published on the Council’s 

Publication of Decisions List. 
 
1. CCTV MONITORING /ALARM RESPONSE SERVICES  (Pages 1 - 12) 
 
2. GRANT FUNDING FOR ROUGH SLEEPERS ACCOMMODATION  (Pages 

13 - 28) 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 

London Borough of Enfield 
 
Lead Member and Operational Decision of Executive Director of People   
 

 
Subject: Cctv Monitoring /Alarm response services    
 
Cabinet Member: Cllr Keazor  
 
Executive Director: of People - Tony Theodoulou    
 
Key Decision KD 5265 

 
 
Purpose of Report 
 
1. This report seeks approval to appoint the successful contract provider to supply the 

current monitoring service for the period of the new contract term.  
 
2. To approve the suppliers tendered price that has been given in the Confidential 

Appendix of this report.     
      . 
Proposal 
 

3. To award a 5-year contract for the provision of CCTV monitoring services, with a 
permissible extension of up to 1+1 year up to a total contract term of 7 years as 
per the contract specification and to start the new contract on or before 21st April 
22. 

 
Reason for Proposal 
 
5.   To ensure that the CCTV and other security systems are monitored 

by a trusted SIA accredited contractor to a high industry standard and that those 
services represent best value. 
 

6.   To ensure continuity of service and to support the Council’s commitment 
      to improve Community Safety in the London Borough of Enfield.  

 

 

Good homes in well-connected neighbourhoods 
 
7    Collaborative approach around ensuring Community Safety and prevention and 
      detection of crime around residential and open spaces and making Enfield a 
safer 
      place for its residents and a safer place to live and work. 
 
.  
 

Page 1 Agenda Item 1



2 

 

2 

 

Sustain strong and healthy Communities 
 
8.    CCTV forms a key part of any Community Safety Partnership 

  and the CCTV Operators have a strong working relationship with the borough’s 
  Police and Community Safety officers and other Council services.  
 

Build our local economy to create a thriving place 
 
9      To ensure that Enfield is a safer place to work & live to increase public 
confidence 

in prevention and detection of crime ensuring local businesses can trade in a 
safe environment. Thus, improving the boroughs local economy and on going 
regeneration works in various areas in the borough. 

 
Background: 
 

        10.    The existing contract commenced in 2015 after a full tender process was 
         completed. This was supported by procurement and legal teams 
following 
         the required process. 

 
11.    The current provider was appointed and has supplied SIA licenced 
CCTV 

monitoring teams to cover a 24/7 service for monitoring CCTV, building 
alarms and the Council lone worker systems.  

           
Enfield Public Safety Centre (EPSC) has achieved Alarm Receiving 
Centre (ARC) status to the relevant industry standards. 

 
12    The current contract was extended in 2019 for a further 2 years but 

due to the Covid-19 pandemic a waiver was required to enable further 
additional time for a procurement process to be undertaken in 
accordance with the Public Contract Regulations 2015. 

 
        The procurement process is now completed, and a suitable supplier has 
        been identified.  

 
 

 
Main Considerations for the Council 
 
  
 
13  The new contract for CCTV monitoring service will provide best value. 
      See Part 2 for further comments.  
        
14.   The new contract will ensure continuity of service is applied throughout in the 
        support of the Council’s commitment to improve Community Safety 
        in Enfield.  
 

Page 2



3 

 

3 

 

 
 
 
 Safeguarding Implications 
 
 15 The work of the Enfield Public Safety centre provides a vital source of 
information 
       for police when gathering intelligence an investigating criminal activity, and acts 
       as a deterrent to criminals, reducing the likelihood of crime thus improving safety 
       of residents. 
.   
  . 
  Public Health Implications 
 
 16 The work of the CCTV positively supports Council’s Public Health Approach to  
       reduction of serious youth violence.   
 
 
Equalities Impact of the Proposal 
 
17.  There is no detrimental impact on equalities identified within our equality impact  
       assessment. 
 
Environmental and Climate Change Considerations 
 
18    There is limited environmental impact to this service consideration of this issue 
        has been included in the documentation when going out to tender.  
 
Risks that may arise if the proposed decision and related work is not taken 
 
19      There is risk to the local community and staff if the authority is not operating 

the 
          current services that are supplied by the EPSC. These risks include loss of 
          support to detect and deter crime and loss of support for lone workers. 
          The CCTV provision is listed as a Priority One Service within  
          the Council’s Business Continuity and Resilience programme. 
           
 
20       The EPSC also provides alarm monitoring for corporate buildings and 

generates   
          a small income from an external authority by providing disaster  
          recovery services for another Council. Inability to provide this may impact on 
          the Council’s reputation.  
 
 Risks that may arise if the proposed decision is taken and actions that will be 
 taken to manage these risks 
 
21      .  See Part 2.  
 
Financial Implications 

Page 3



4 

 

4 

 

 
22      See Part 2  
 
 
 
Legal Implications 
 
23 The Council has the general power of competence pursuant to s1(1) of the 
Localism 
     Act 2011 to do anything that individuals generally may do, provided it is not 
     prohibited by legislation and is subject to public law principles. Section 111 of the  
     Local Government Act 1972 permits local authorities to do anything which is 
     calculated to facilitate, or is conducive or incidental to, the discharge of their  
     functions. 
 
24. In running the procurement process the Council must follow the Council’s  
      Constitution, in particular the Contract Procedure Rules, and the Public Contract  
      Regulations 2015.  
 
25. See Part 2.  
 
26. The Council must comply with its obligations relating to the obtaining of best 
value 
      under the Local Government (Best Value Principles) Act (1999). 
 
27. There must be adequate budgetary provision for the award of the contract.  
 
28. See Part 2.  
 
 
27. As the value of the contract exceeds £500,000, officers must ensure this report  
      follows the Council’s Key Decision process. 
 
(Legal implications provided by E.M. on 23.03.2022 based on the version of the report circulated on 22.03.2022 at 15:38)  

 
Workforce Implications 
 
24    Contracted staff are subject to TUPE which has been included in the Tender 
        Documentation. 
 
Property Implications 
 
25   There are no Property implications 
 
26   Procurement Implications  

 
The procurement was undertaken in accordance with the Councils Contract 
Procedure Rules (CPR’s) and the Public Contracts Regulations (2015). 
DN545385 
 

Page 4



5 

 

5 

 

Business Case for the Provision of Public Surveillance CCTV Monitoring, CCTV 
Parking and Traffic Enforcement, Building and Personal Alarm Receiving Centre, 
Control Room has been approved by Procurement Services on the 16th June 
2021. 
 
The award of the contract, including evidence of authority to award, promoting to 
the Councils Contract Register, and the uploading of executed contracts must be 
undertaken on the London Tenders Portal including future management of the 
contract. 
 

All awarded projects must be promoted to Contracts Finder to comply with the 
Government’s transparency requirements. 
During the planning process due regard was taken to include social value, 
equalities and sustainability elements within the procurement tender documents.  
This is in line with the CPR’s and new Sustainable & Ethical Procurement policy 
that came into effect in February 2022.  
 
It is expected that a contract of this size and risk, should have regular contract 
reviews, and that KPI’s are monitored including the delivery of any social value. 
 
The contract DN545385 in line with the CPR’s should have a nominated contract 
manager named in the LTP, and evidence of regular reviews uploaded to the 
LTP. 

 
 
 
Options Considered 
  
27      Allow the current contract to expire and leave the CCTV Enfield Public 
          Safety Centre without a monitoring contractor to cover the 24/7 services. 
    .  
 
28     Bring the service in house. This was considered but rejected on the basis that it 
         would not be viable nor cost effective.  The contract arrangements provide for 
         greater resilience with regard to business continuity. The costs associated with 
         SIA licence applications would also be an extra cost to the Council if the 
service 
         was brought in house. 

 
29     Complete the current procurement process to obtain best 
         value around contract provision and services. Our appraisal highlights this as 
the 
         most viable option in terms of cost efficiency and effectiveness of the service. 
 
Conclusions 
 
30    A procurement process was completed with due diligence to ensure that the 
        CCTV monitoring is delivered by a trusted supplier to a high industry standard. 
         

Page 5



6 

 

6 

 

       The new arrangement will ensure continuity of service. The provision will 
support 
       and improve Community Safety in the Borough of Enfield and ensure it is a safe 
       Place to live work and study.  
 
 

Report Author: 
 
Darren Woods 
 
Date of report   
 
28th March 2022  
 
 
Background Papers 
 
The following documents have been relied on in the preparation of this report: 
 
None 
 

Page 6



Document is Restricted

Page 7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



 PL 20/091 P ] 

London Borough of Enfield 
 
Portfolio Report 
 
Report of: Joanne Drew 
 
 

 
Subject:  Grant Funding for Rough Sleepers Accommodation  
Cabinet Member: Cllr Needs Cabinet Member for Social Housing 
 
Executive Director: Sarah Cary 
 
Ward:                        All 
 
Key Decision: 5244 
 

Purpose of Report 

1. The Rough Sleeping Accommodation Programme (RSAP) was launched by 

Greater London Authority (GLA) in July 2020. The aim of the programme is “to 

provide move on accommodation and support to rough sleepers, to enable them 

to transition to independent living.” 

2. The first round of programme (RSAP 20/21 – RSAP 1) opened in 2020 and 

Enfield Council secured funding to provide 73 units of accommodation and 

support to rough sleepers. The implementation of Enfield Council’s RSAP 1 

Project was approved by key Decision 5244. 

3. A capital grant extension of £251,151 for the RSAP 1 Project was agreed by the 

GLA to deliver more units. 

4. The latest round (RSAP 20/24 – RSAP 2) opened in 2021 and Enfield Council 

has secured additional capital and revenue funding totalling £2,269,878 to 

provide a further 14 units of accommodation and support to rough sleepers.  

5. This report seeks approval for the Council to enter into a letter of variation with 

the GLA, which varies the initial capital grant funding agreement entered into  for 

RSAP 1.  This will facilitate delivery of an additional 4 units for RSAP 1, 14 units 

of accommodation for RSAP 2 and support to rough sleepers. 

Proposal(s) 

6. Approve the additional GLA capital grant allocation of £251,151 and agree to 

transfer the grant to Housing Gateway Ltd, under a variation of the existing back-

Page 13 Agenda Item 2



PL 20/091P 
 

Internal - Official - Sensitive [Commercial] 

to-back agreement with HGL, or a new back-to-back agreement, for the purchase 

of an additional 4 units for RSAP 1. 

7. Approve the GLA capital grant allocation of £1,986,575 to lease 14 units on 3-

5year leases from HGL and/or private landlords, which will be renewed or 

substituted as they expire, which will ensure the provision of 14 units for period of 

30 years.  

8. Approve the GLA revenue grant allocation of £283,303 to provide housing 

support services to rough sleepers for the period up 31 March 2024. 

9. Approve entering into the GLA letter of variation to vary the GLA Capital Grant 

Agreement and completion of all necessary agreements, including leases and 

licences. 

Reason for Proposal(s) 

10. Rough Sleeping has been a policy priority for successive governments for over 

30 years. The most recent national Rough Sleeping Strategy set out the 

Government’s plans to half rough sleeping by 2022 and end it by 2027. 

11. The Strategy’s central aim to end rough sleeping by 2027 is underpinned by an 

increase in affordable housing and the adoption of more evidence-based models, 

such as rapid rehousing and Housing First. Rapid rehousing enables 

homelessness people to access affordable, decent housing quickly with 

appropriate support. Housing First enables homeless people with high needs, 

including entrenched and repeat rough sleepers, to sustain their own homes.  

12. Enfield’s Preventing Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy 2020-2025 set 

out Council’s plan to reduce homelessness and end rough sleeping in Enfield. A 

key plank of Enfield’s strategy is to increase the supply of supported 

accommodation, including rapid rehousing and Housing First, for rough sleepers.  

13. Enfield Council has been awarded an extension to the first round RSAP 1 

funding to provide an additional 4 units and support to rough sleepers, bringing 

the total units provided by RSAP 1 to 77.  Enfield Council has secured second 

round funding to provide an additional 14 units, which will increase Enfield’s total 

RSAP programme to 91 units of supported accommodation. 

14. The 91 units of supported accommodation will play a key role in delivering 

Enfield’s Preventing Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy 2020-2025, 

namely the aim to end rough sleeping in Enfield. The accommodation will provide 

supported accommodation to new rough sleepers, including those at the 

Page 14



PL 20/091P 
 

Internal - Official - Sensitive [Commercial] 

Somewhere to Stay hub and more entrenched rough sleepers who remain on the 

streets. The accommodation will also be provided to those housed under the 

national Everyone In initiative.    

Scheme Type Capital 

Grant 

Revenue 

Grant 

No. of 

units 

Approval 

RSAP 1 Purchase £6,792,673 £2,289,317 73 Already approved 

via KD 5244 

RSAP 1 Purchase £251, 151  4 For approval in 

this report 

RSAP 2 Lease £1,986,575 £283,303 14 For approval in 

this report 

Total  9,030,399 £2,572,620 91  

 

Relevance to the Council’s Corporate Plan 

The Project is relevant to the Council’s Corporate Plan, particularly the following:   

15. Good homes in well-connected neighbourhoods 

The plan will help to create a sustainable pathway for rough sleepers back into 

the wider community.  It will increase the provision of supported housing for 

rough sleepers and connect residents with the services they need to sustain their 

housing. 

16. Sustain strong and healthy communities 

Rough sleeping is a key factor in health inequality.  The average age of death for 

rough sleepers is currently 44 years for men and 42 years for women.  This is 30 

years lower than that of the general population.  Bringing rough sleepers into 

accommodation should therefore have a major impact on their quality of life and 

life expectancy 

17. Build our local economy to create a thriving place 

Page 15



PL 20/091P 
 

Internal - Official - Sensitive [Commercial] 

Employment support will be at the heart of the service offer, particularly for those 

with no recourse to public funds.  The plan will help to support residents into 

employment. 

Main Considerations for the Council 

18. RSAP1 has been delivered in collaboration with Housing Gateway Ltd (HGL), the 

Council’s wholly owned company. HGL can supplement the grant with its own 

capital to make the purchase of the units viable. However, the GLA funding 

requires grant funded homes to be owned and managed by a Registered 

Provider or the Council, HGL is not a Registered Provider. 

19.  Therefore, the proposal is for homes to be acquired via HGL, leased to the 

Council via a Full Repair and Insurance lease (FRI Lease) to act as the landlord 

and let the homes on non-secure basis, at affordable rents.  The grant dictates 

that the properties are available for rough sleepers for at least 30 years.  This 

structure fulfils all the grant terms.  HGL has already secured 46 of the 77 units 

required for RSAP 1. 

20. The original RSAP2 proposal, which was approved by the GLA in 2021, required 

Enfield Council to lease 14 units from private landlords on 30year leases. This 

proposal subsequently proved undeliverable because market feedback 

demonstrated that 30-year FRI leases were not acceptable to landlords in the 

PRS market. Therefore, the Enfield and the GLA agreed on … to provide 14 units 

on shorter leases of between 3 and 5 years on the condition that Enfield provided  

14 units for 30 year i.e. if a lease expires, it will be replaced with another 1 bed 

unit. 

21. The amended RSAP2 project, agreed with the GLA in March 2022, requires 

Enfield Council to provide 14 units of accommodation for a period of 30 years via 

leasing arrangements. Enfield Council acquire the 14 leases from both HGL and 

private landlords. The proposed leases will run for a period of 3-5years. As the 

funding requires Enfield Council to provide 14units for 30years, the 3-5years 

leases will be renewed or substituted as they expire. This will ensure the 

provision of 14units for 30years. 

22.  To ensure the effective delivery of the project within the proposed timeframe, 

Enfield Council and HGL will work in partnership to provide the initial 14 leases. 

Enfield Council will lease up to 14 units of accommodation at Brickfield House, in 

which HGL is the Freeholder. As with RSAP1, the leases will be Full Repair and 

Page 16



PL 20/091P 
 

Internal - Official - Sensitive [Commercial] 

Insurance lease (FRI Lease) for a period of between 3- 5 years. In line with the 

FRI lease, Enfield Council will provide a full management and repair service and 

guaranteed rent to the landlord.  

23. It is proposed that Enfield Council will ensure the ongoing provision of 14 units by 

either renewing the initial 14 HGL leases at Brickfield or seek to acquire several 

units from private landlords in the market – up to a maximum of 14 units in line 

with the RSAP funding agreement. The arrangement will enable Enfield Council 

to provide 14 units in total for the period of 30 years.  

24. The extension to RSAP 1 and addition of RSAP 2 will enhance Enfield’s existing 

RSAP Project providing accommodation and support to rough sleepers in 

Enfield.  

25. The HAS will provide both property management services and housing support 

services directly. The HAS has considerable experience of delivering property 

management services and housing support services. The Property Management 

Team currently manage over 1500 accommodation units, including properties 

leased under Full Repair & Insurance agreements, such as Greenway House. 

Property management services will be delivered by the Property Management 

Team within the Market Management Service.  

26. The specialist rough sleeper focused housing support is delivered by the Street 

Homelessness Accommodation Team within the Sustainable Housing Service. 

The Team was specifically established to provide the specialist housing support 

in line with requirements of the RSAP1 contracts and proposed RSAP 2 contract 

and will include tenancy sustainment support alongside bespoke Employment, 

Training and Employment support. Additionally move-on support will be provided 

to help residents successfully resettle into more mainstream housing, such as 

privately rented and socially rented housing. 

27. The Street Homelessness Accommodation Team consists of 14 posts – 10 

funded via RSAP1 and 4 via RSAP2. All 14 posts were created via the HAS 

Amended Restructure Report (Appendix 3). The report was authorised by 

Joanne Drew, Director of Housing and Regeneration, on 18 June 2021.  

28. The structure of the Street Homelessness Accommodation Team and recruitment 

progress is summarised below: 

Post Grade Number RSAP 

Round 

Contract Recruitment  

Page 17



PL 20/091P 
 

Internal - Official - Sensitive [Commercial] 

Street 

Homelessness 

Accommodation 

Team Manager 

MM2 1 RSAP1 Fixed term 

to 

31/03/2025 

In post 

Street 

Homelessness 

Accommodation 

Team Leader 

PO2 1 RSAP1 Fixed term 

to 

31/03/2025 

Onboarding 

Sustainable 

Housing 

Support Worker 

Sc6 6 RSAP1 Fixed term 

to 

31/03/2025 

2 Fixed  term 

in post 

3 interims in 

post 

 

4 Fixed term 

to recruit 

 

Welfare, Debt 

and 

Employment 

Advisor 

SO2 2 RSAP1 Fixed term 

to 

31/03/2025 

1 in post 

1 to recruit 

Sustainable 

Housing 

Support Worker 

Sc6 2 RSAP2 Fixed term 

to 

31/03/2024 

Recruitment 

contingent 

on funding 

Specialist 

Street 

Homelessness 

Coordinator 

SO2 1 RSAP2 Fixed term 

to 

31/03/2024 

Recruitment 

contingent 

on funding 

 

29. RSAP1 revenue funding runs to 31 March 2025. The 10 RSAP1 funded posts 

have been appointed on fixed term contracts to this date as will vacant posts. 

Page 18



PL 20/091P 
 

Internal - Official - Sensitive [Commercial] 

30. The proposed RSAP2 revenue funding will run to 31 March 2024. The 

recruitment of the proposed additional posts is contingent on the funding, which 

is linked to the number of accommodation units secured. Furthermore, the posts 

will be appointed on fixed term contracts for the period to 31 March 2021. 

31. All vacant posts will be initially advertised internally to existing employees in line 

with Enfield’s HR policies and procedures. The additional posts will create a 

range of deployment and career development opportunities within the 

homelessness sector. The proposed amendments will not affect existing staff 

and no staff are being put at risk. 

Safeguarding Implications 

32. This is a highly vulnerable group of residents.  Safeguarding issues are therefore 

paramount in both the design and delivery of services to rough sleepers.  

Public Health Implications 

33. Rough sleeping is a key factor in health inequality.  The average age of death for 

rough sleepers is currently 44 years for men and 42 years for women.  This is 30 

years lower than that of the general population.  Bringing rough sleepers into 

accommodation should therefore have a major impact on their quality of life and 

life expectancy.    

Equalities Impact of the Proposal  

34. Providing additional affordable housing has the potential to benefit the most 

economically disadvantaged and those with protected characteristics. A full 

impact assessment was provided for The Rough Sleepers Local Delivery Plan 

which relates to the objectives of this proposal. 

Environmental and Climate Change Considerations  

35. All schemes will be delivered in accordance with current environmental 

standards. 

Risks that may arise if the proposed decision and related work is not taken 

Page 19



PL 20/091P 
 

Internal - Official - Sensitive [Commercial] 

36. The Council has bid for and been successful in securing £11.6m capital and 

revenue grant funding to deliver the RSAP project.   Enfield Council’s ability to 

secure additional funding could be jeopardised if it declines this funding or fails to 

deliver the project. 

37. If this project does not progress, the council may not be able to fulfil its aims to 

reduce homelessness and end rough sleeping as set out in the Preventing 

Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy 2020-2025, which included the 

commitment to increase the supply of supported housing in Enfield.  

38. Enfield Council accommodated over 400 rough sleepers between March 2020 

and July 2021 under the national Everyone In Initiative, the Government’s 

flagship response to rough sleeping during the Covid-19 crisis. Recent case law 

developments require local authorities to provide emergency housing to rough 

sleepers during public health emergencies such as lockdowns.   The RSAP 

project assists with this obligation and without it, there would be an additional 

financial burden on the Council. 

39. The effective resettlement of the rough sleepers was impeded by the insufficient 

supply of move on accommodation, including supported housing, which 

increased social and financial costs to both residents and Enfield Council. The 

increase in supported housing will improve Enfield’s resilience to further public 

health emergencies and move-on rates from emergency housing. 

Risks that may arise if the proposed decision is taken and actions that will 

be taken to manage these risks 

40. The primary risk is that the Council will not be able to deliver the project within 

the timeframe. The risk is linked to the Council’s ability to acquire 14 

accommodation units by 31st March 22.  

41. To mitigate the risk, Enfield Council and the GLA agreed to amend the original 

proposal of 2021 to lease 14 units for 30 years. The new proposal, agreed in 

February 2022, will enable Enfield Council to acquire 14 units on shorter leases 

of between 3 and 5 years. Enfield Council and HGL have also agreed to provide 

the initial 14 units at Brickfield House. 

42. To further mitigate the risk, Enfield Council has maintained regular contact with 

the GLA and has requested a short extension to RSAP1 and RSAP 2 into 22/23. 

Initial feedback from the GLA has been positive.  

Page 20



PL 20/091P 
 

Internal - Official - Sensitive [Commercial] 

43. Were the GLA to terminate the project for non-delivery, Enfield Council and 

Gateway will terminate any leases and/or leases set up to implement the project. 

Financial Implications 

44. The Council has been awarded total grant funding of £2,269,878 for RSAP 2 – 

capital grant of £1,986,575 and revenue of £283,303 provide 14 units 

accommodation and support to rough sleepers.  It has also been awarded 

£251,151 capital grant, as an extension to RSAP 1, delivering an additional 4 

units. 

45. The additional capital grant funding for RSAP will be dealt with in accordance 

with the initial grant funding for RSAP 1.  i.e.  HGL will purchase the properties by 

providing its own capital, up to HGL’s yield limit, with the grant being used to “top 

up” the capital for the property purchase to be financially viable. 

46. The Council will acquire and manage 14 units of accommodation under 3 – 5-

year leases. The Lease will provide the landlord a full management and repair 

service, which will be delivered by the Council’s inhouse Property Management 

and Repair Services. The lease will also provide the landlord with a guaranteed 

rent. Despite the individual leases only spanning 3 – 5 years, the Council is 

taking an obligation to provide leases for 30 years. 

47. The cost of the 30-year lease for RSAP 2 will be covered by two components – 

the capital grant of £1,986,575 and the rental income from the 14 flats. The grant 

will be held in a ringfence to be drawn down over the lease period. The rent will 

be set in line with the London Affordable Rent and uplifted annually.  A detailed 

financial model, prepared by a Senior Finance Officer, demonstrates the financial 

viability of the project. The model includes bad debt, repairs, maintenance, voids 

and guaranteed lease uplift subject to an uplift on the affordable rent as 

determined by the GLA (historically September CPI +1%). 

48. The revenue funding of £283,303 covers the period 1 April 2021 to 31 March 

2024. The revenue funding will provide additional capacity within the HAS’s 

Sustainable Housing Service and is linked to availability of the additional units. It 

is yet to be determined if the revenue funding can be retained for a future year in 

the event of an underspend early in the project. This will be clarified as soon as is 

practicable. 

Page 21



PL 20/091P 
 

Internal - Official - Sensitive [Commercial] 

49. The capital and revenue funding are ring fenced for this specific project, which 

must be delivered by 31st March 2022, unless an extension is agreed with the 

GLA. 

50. There is some financial risk in terms of renewing leases every 3 or 5 years and it 

will be important when those renewals arise that they are made at the best 

possible price and in a timely fashion in line with the modelling to ensure the 

capital grant and rental income are enough to sustain the project for the 30-year 

lifespan. 

51. Although the capital grant and revenue income should cover the cost of the 

project over 30 years, consideration may be given to ringfencing some additional 

funds to cover any unexpected and yet unidentified costs. 

52. The income & expenditure of these units will be monitored and reported on as 

part of the overall budget monitoring process. 

Legal Implications 

53. Section 9 of the Housing Act 1985 permits the Council to provide housing 

accommodation by acquiring houses. Non-secure tenancies can be granted for 

the move on temporary accommodation using Section 6 of Schedule 3 of the 

1985 Act. 

54.  The Council must comply with all the terms and conditions of the grant funding 

from the GLA for both revenue and capital funding.  This includes a form of letter 

of variation that has been provided by the GLA to vary the GLA Capital Grant 

Funding Agreement.  The form of letter of variation must be approved by legal 

services.  As the additional funding is more than £500k, the letter of variation 

must be executed as a deed.  As for the revenue funding element it is expected 

that the GLA will provide a separate revenue funding agreement that must also 

be approved by legal services. 

55. The GLA Capital grant funding conditions includes many warranties that the 

council are required to agree to.  These warranties include: 

a. The council not being subject to any Section 15 Direction nor do any 

circumstances exist which would permit such a direction to be issued in 

accordance with the Local Government Act 1999; and 

b. No Section 114 Report has been made nor is the Council aware of any 

circumstances which would give rise to the making of a Section 114 Report in 

accordance with the Local Government Finance Act 1988 

Page 22



PL 20/091P 
 

Internal - Official - Sensitive [Commercial] 

56. The two warranties set out in paragraph 53 above must be provided by the 

council’s S 151 Officer prior to the Letter of Variation being entered. 

57. Proposal 4 in this report refers to transferring the capital grant to Housing 

Gateway Limited.  For this, legal services must be instructed in good time for 

legal to draw up a new back to back agreement or vary the existing back to back 

agreement that was put in place under the RSAP 1 project. 

58. For all legal transactions between HGL and the council (i.e. leases, back to back 

agreement,  or any variation to an existing back to back agreement), officers 

must be mindful that no conflicts of interest arise between the council and HGL.  

As such, HGL should consider appointing a lawyer to represent them to 

implement these transactions.  HGL can instruct a lawyer from the council’s legal 

services department and appropriate Chinese Walls must be set up to avoid any 

potential conflict.   

59. The subject of this report represents a key decision and as such all the 

procedures for the following of key decisions must be followed. 

60. The general power of competence in s.1 (1) of the Localism Act 2011 states that 

a local authority has the power to do anything that individuals generally may do 

provided it is not prohibited by legislation and subject to Public Law principles. 

61. Section 111 of the Local Government Act 1972 permits local authorities to do 

anything which is calculated to facilitate, or is conducive or incidental to, the 

discharge of their functions. 

62. For the avoidance of doubt, the resultant funding agreement variation(s) and  

back to back agreement(s) and leases to be set up to implement this project  

must be in a form approved by the Director of Law and Governance.  

63. The Council must be mindful of the new subsidy control system which replaced 

the previous EU state aid regime in the UK as of 1 January 2021.  It is likely that 

the previous exemptions which applied to any aid/subsidy from the Council to 

HGL will continue to apply, but the position should be kept under review.   

Workforce Implications 

64. Enfield Council was awarded RSAP1 revenue funding of £2,289,317 to provide 

77 units of housing support accommodation to 31 March 2025. The housing 

support is being delivered by the Street Homelessness Accommodation Team. 

The Team was established specifically to provide the specialist rough sleeper 

focused housing support in line with requirements of the RSAP1 contracts.  

Page 23



PL 20/091P 
 

Internal - Official - Sensitive [Commercial] 

65. The Street Homelessness Accommodation Team sits with Sustainable Housing 

within HAS and consists of new 10. The posts were created via the HAS 

Amended Restructure Report (Appendix 3), which was authorised by Joanne 

Drew, Director of Housing and Regeneration, on 18 June 2021 

66. The structure of the Street Homelessness Accommodation Team is summarised 

below: 

Post Grade Number Recruitment 

Progress 

Street 

Homelessness 

Accommodation 

Team Manager 

MM2 1 In post 

Street 

Homelessness 

Accommodation 

Team Leader 

PO2 1 Onboarding 

Sustainable Housing 

Support Worker 

Sc6 6 2 fixed terms 

3 interims 

4 fixed term to 

recruit 

Welfare, Debt and 

Employment Advisor 

SO2 2 1 in post 

1 to recruit 

 

67. In accordance to RSAP1 funding, the above posts will be appointed on fixed term 

contracts to 25 March 2025. This may occur a redundancy payment  at the end 

of the contract. 

68. Enfield Council was awarded additional RSAP2 revenue funding of £283,303 to 

provide 14 units of housing support accommodation to 31 March 2024. The 

funding will create 4 additional posts within the Street Homelessness Team as 

follows: 

Page 24



PL 20/091P 
 

Internal - Official - Sensitive [Commercial] 

Post Grade Number 

Sustainable Housing 

Support Worker 

Sc6 3 

Specialist Street 

Homelessness Coordinator 

SO2 1 

 

69. The RSAP2 funded posts were also created via the HAS Amended Restructure 

Report (Appendix 3), which was authorised by Joanne Drew, Director of Housing 

and Regeneration, on 18 June 2021.  

70. Recruitment to posts funded RSAP2 will be dependent on when funding 

becomes available.  The trigger for funding is the linked accommodation coming 

on stream. Furthermore, the posts will be appointed on fixed term contracts to 31 

March 2024 on the condition that the additional RSAP2 funding is secured. 

71. The new posts will be advertised internally to existing employees in line with 

Enfield’s HR policies and procedures. The additional posts will create a range of 

deployment and career development opportunities within the homelessness 

sector. 

72. The proposed amendments will not affect existing staff and no staff are being put 

at risk. 

Property Implications 

73. The Property Procedure Rules clearly state that they do not apply to the 

Council’s ‘residential housing stock’. As the 14 to be leased-in (and subsequently 

leased-out) properties are residential housing stock, the proposals within this 

report are not needing to follow the Property Procedural Rules. 

74. The newly leased properties will be added to the existing large portfolio of leased 

properties for temporary accommodation which has established property 

management, repair & maintenance, and compliance procedures, systems and 

resources already in place. 

75. Taking the above into consideration, there are no new or extraordinary property 

implications arising from this report. 

Page 25



PL 20/091P 
 

Internal - Official - Sensitive [Commercial] 

Conclusions 

76. Enfield Council has secured additional funding to provide support 

accommodation to rough sleepers. The funding will contribute to the effective 

delivery of the Council’s Corporate Plan, the Homelessness Prevention and 

Rough Sleeping Strategy as well as improve outcomes for vulnerable residents 

and mitigate the social and economic costs of public health emergencies. 

77. This report seeks approval for the following proposals: 

 Approve the additional GLA capital grant allocation of £251,151 and agree to 

transfer the grant to Housing Gateway Ltd, under a variation of the existing back-

to-back agreement with HGL, or a new back-to-back agreement, for the purchase 

of an additional 4 units for RSAP 1. 

 Approve the GLA capital grant allocation of £1,986,575 to lease 14 units on 3-

5year leases from HGL and/or private landlords, which will be renewed or 

substituted as they expire, which will ensure the provision of 14 units for  period 

of 30 years.  

 Approve the GLA revenue grant allocation of £283,303 to provide housing 

support services to rough sleepers for the period up 31 March 2024. 

 Approve entering into the GLA letter of variation to vary the GLA Capital Grant 

Agreement and completion of all necessary agreements, including leases and 

licences. 

 

Report Author: Dr Adam Stephenson 

 Head of Market Management 

 Adam.stephenson@enfield.gov.uk  

March 2022 

Appendices 

Background Papers 

The following documents have been relied on in the preparation of this report: 

Page 26

mailto:Adam.stephenson@enfield.gov.uk


PL 20/091P 
 

Internal - Official - Sensitive [Commercial] 

 

 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Cctv Monitoring /Alarm response services
	DAR  KD5265 CCTV monitoring confidential appendix  ) 28.3.22

	2 Grant Funding for Rough Sleepers Accommodation

